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& ASSOCIATES . e

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF KM TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of KM Toll Road Private Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31= March, 2017, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

2. The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated
in Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™) with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a truec and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance (including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Standalone Ind AS Financial statements
based on our audit.

We have taken Into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit In accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10] of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial
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statements that give a true and fair view In order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Dircctors, as well as cvaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide 4 basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

6.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by
the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in confarmity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31# March, 2017, and its loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Other Matter

7. The financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2016 and

the transition date opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2015 inluded in these standalone Ind
AS financial statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 prepared in accordance with the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 which were audited by us, on which we
expressed an unmodified opinion vide our report dated May 14, 2016 and May 18,
2015 respectively. The adjustments to those financial statements for the differences in
accounting principles adopted by the company in transition to Ind AS have been audited by
us.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

8.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2016 (“the order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, and on
the basis of such checks of the books and records of the company as we considered
appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in
Annexure - “A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order.

Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books
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The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account

in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act

{in the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31t March,
2017, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of
the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we give our separate report
in "Annexurc - B".

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {Auditand Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best af
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have a material
impact its financial position-

i} Based upon the assessment made by the company, there are no material foreseeable
losses on its long term contracts that may require any provisioning

iii) In view of there being no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund for the year under audit the reporting under this
clause is not applicable.

iv) The company has provided requisite disclosures in its financial statements as to
holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from
November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016. Based on audit procedures and relying
on the management representation we report that the disclosures are in
accordance with books of account maintained by the Company and as produced
to us by the Management - Refer Note 41

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN 302014E

[

‘CA Narendra Khandal
_Partner
M No. 065025

Mumbai, April 14, 2017
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors Report
Referred to in para 7 of our report of even date, to the members of KM Toll Road Private
Limited for the year ended March 31, 2017

i)

iii)

vi)

vii)

(a) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, with respect to its
fixed assets comprising of Intangible Assets and Intangible assets under development.

(b} The fixed assets of the company have been physically verified by the management
during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In
our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(t] According to the information and explanations provided to us, there are no immovable
properties included in the fixed assets of the company and accordingly the reporting
requirements under sub clause (c) of clause (i) of paragraph 3 of the order arc not
applicable.

In our opinion, and according to thz information and explanations given to us, the company
has sub-contracted the entire construction / operation related activities and therefore does
not carry any inventories. Hence, the reporting requirements under clause {ii) of paragraph 3
of the order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company
has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, the reporting requirements under sub-clause (a), (b]) and
(c) of Clause (lif) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
loans, investments, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable and hence the reporting requirements under
clause (iv] of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not accepted any deposits during the period under audit. Consequently, the directives
issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
rules framed thereunder are not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1] of section 148 of the Act for the company. We have broadly reviewed such records
and are of the opinion that prima-facle, the prescribed records have been made and
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view
to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(a) According to the information and explanations given tn us and based on the records of
the company examined by us, the company is generally regular in depositing the
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess
and any ather material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities in
India.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed
amounts in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues which in arrears as at March 31,
2017 for a peripdafmore than six months from the date they became payable.


41018371
Stamp


(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no applicable
statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

viii) Based upon the audit procedures carried out by us and on the basis of information and
explanations provided by the manzgement we are of the opinion that the company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to hanks / Financial Institutions or Debenture Iolders. The
company does not have any borrowings from government.

ix)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans
taken by the company have been ultimately utilised for the purpose for which they were
taken.

X) Based on the audit procedures perfarmed by us for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the financial statements and as per the information and explanations given to us by
the management, we report that we have neither come across any instance of fraud by the
company or on the company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year,
nor have we been informed of any such case by the management.

xi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not paid any
managerial remuneration during the year and hence the reporting requirements under
clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

xii) The company is not a Nidhi Compzny and hence the reporting requirements under clause
(xii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

xiii]  According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered into by
the company with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 178 of the Act
where applicable and the details thereof have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partly convertible debentures during the year under audit.

xv]  As per the information and explanations provided to us, the company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.

xvi] In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is
not required to be registered under Section 45 - 1A of the Reserve Bank of India, 1934.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN 302014FE

arendra Khandal
ariner
"M No. 065025
Mumbai, April 14, 2017
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors Report
Referred to in para 8 of our report of even date, Lo the members of KM Toll Road Private
Limited for the year ended March 31, 2017

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls aver financial reporting of KM Toll Road Private
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system aver financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the desizn and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk, The procedures sclected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
ar error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Dver Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the mansactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN 302014E

L LT __‘{_

Narendra !Eﬁ_andal
Partner
M No. 065025

Mumbai, April 14, 2017
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KM TCLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED

Balanco Shoet
¥ Millions
— As at As at As at
Parlicuisrs Nl March 31, 2017 March 34, 2048 April 1, 2016
ASBETS
Hon-current asseis
(a1 Intanpible assels 4 1331763 135845 64 -
(b Inbiangible asesie under develcpment 4 Z235.96 182504 ROEG GH
o} Liotarnod tas asscts {net) s 402 02 12478 103.12
15 Mher non - Curer assets 5 a5 n.az 8323
Current assols
(8} Finanzial Axscis
{ib 2ash and cash equivalens 5o 10.80 230,28 31.27
(i} 3trar finarcial assat 5k 7642 7.9z B.ER
(Liy Lwiresd | 2k AESELE [MNat) 043 1.72 248
e dlthar currant asssts i 21.r2 14.28 3283
Tolal Aaaets N 1E0B3.09 " A5 TE1 8 9152 74
EQUATY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(ot} Fyuily share cagdal B 34.08 53408 24,09
\uh Subordmated debt (in nalure of Equity} Ba 7950 0250 236230
(c) Cther ogquily g N N {298,413 194,26 | 32862
Total Equity 353118 J630.65 | 2rasa
LIABILITIES
Mon-current lishilitios
(&) Financial Lisbiites
(i1 Borrowings 19 B4DD.7E BB3E.2T7 548785
{iiy Cher financisl liabifies 12b 472387 4,574.42 200,58
1) Pravigions 13 128.37 3412 188
Current linhilities
{48y Finanel Liab ks
) Trado payables 11 104.45 288 82 -
{iiiy Cthar firancal fabities 124 1171.83 394 B4 TAT 14
1) Other currenl labiifes 14 1.32 01a 062
1) Pravislans 1ia 010 (.09 .08
by Currant Tax Liakililes [Met) o -
Total Equity and Liabilities 16063.09 16761.66 9152.24

The accampanying summady of signilicant accouwnsling polices and ather explanadory infarmfaion (notest are an iregral pad of the Finencial Siatemants

This ig e Balance Sheet referred to in our repon of even date.

For MEFS & Associates
Chartered Accountans
Firm's Regn. Mo, J02014E

':‘__/IJa ndra Khandal ;
P

A rnDEre g M. ELRDRS

Datw: April 14, 2017
Place: Mumbsi

For and an behall of the Board

Kaushik Pal
Direeio
MW OB237230

Date: April 14, 2017
Hiace Murmbai

= =
Madan Biyani

Eral
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KM TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss

T Millians
. Year ended Year ended

Particul:

articulars Note Warch 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Revenue from Operations 15 § 1,075 77 | 634 58
Other Income 16 ) 502 17
Total Income ) 1,080.79 1.636.28
Expenses

Tall Operation and Maintainence expenses 17 162.76 TE 24

Constuction cost 256724 1311 76

Employce bonefits exponse 18 16.71 1844

Finanee cosls 19 1,179.80 247 .85

Mrnorlizabion cxpense 4 6.1 91 46

DHher expenses 20 29.79 | = 44.04
Tolal expenses Lhobie 186141 | 1,792.79
Prafit ! {loss) hefore tax (780.62) | (156.51)
lax expense

Currant fax (12.35) -

Daferred tax chargedcrodit) {277.36) (21.78)

lax for carlier years
Profiti{Loss) for the period (IX + X1} {490.91) (134.75)
Other Comprehensive Income
{1} tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeazurements of net defined benefit plans : Gaing / (Loss) 0.38 0.29
(i} Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassificd to
profit or loss

Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans 0.13 0.10
Other Comprehensive Incame for the year 0.24 0.18
Total Comprehensive Incoma for the year (490.67) {134.56)
Earnings per cquity share of T10 each

Basic & Diluted H (144 00} [39.53)

Ini accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informtaion (notes) are an integral part of the Financial
Statements

This s the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date,

For MKPS & Associates For and an behalf of the Board
Charterad Accountants
Firm's Regn No. 302014E -
' - + e
' ___.N{i ndra Khandal Kaushik Pal ﬁg_l.ian iyani
Partnar . Direclor Diractar
Mombership No. . 085025 DIN:05237230 DIN:071 39371
Diate: April 14, 2017 Date: April 14, 2017

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
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KK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash flow Statemont

T Millions

Particulars

Yoar anded
March 31, 2047

Yaar endod
March 31, 2016

A CASH FLOW FRONM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Praofit before exceptional items and tax (T80.82) [158.51)
slustmands foe
Amorticalion and smortisalion expenses 21611 a1.446
Irterasl incame [4.98) [1.26)
Lnvalend incoma 0.02)y | {045}
intarest axpansa o 1,179.80 i 247 85
610.29 | 181.09
Cash Generated from Operations before |
warking eapital changes
Adiustments far
{fncreasciidecieasa in finencial assets except for Invesimants {64, 40) 097
{Incraase)/decrassa in ather cument ASsEts (743 1A.35
InescuseAdociease) in rade pavables {182.47) 286.92
Incroasafdacreass) in aifber financial labibibces 0.23 4.33
Increasafidecrenrse) in pravisions BF.72 J6.56
Increascfidocroase) in olhwer current liabilities 1.14 {0.37)
(169.28) 346.76
Cash generated from operations 441.00 627,86
Taxes (paid) net of refunds 13.73 .64
Mot eash generated from operating activities - [A] 454,72 526.43
H LASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase/sale proceeds of intangible assets {including intangible assest 147 .55) {1.887.78)
under developmenl) !
Purchase of currant investments {net of proceeds) 0oz 0.45
Interes! received 4.88 1.26
Met cash (used in) | generated from Investing activities - [B] (142.55) (1,686.07)
L CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Frocaads from Sub-debt 391,00 1.040.20
Frocoods from long term borrowings 36.00 1,227.63
Repayment of long term borowings (180,13} -
Interesl paid (T68.47) {711.22)
Hot cash used in financing activitios - [C] {331.60) 1. 68660
Not incroasof{decrease) In cash and cash equivalents - [A+8+C) {219.42) 1949 03
Add: Cash and cash equivalonts at the beginning of the year 230.28 31.27
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 10.88 23028
Components of Cagh and cash squivalonts
Batances with banks - in Current accounts 507 506
Lraposils wilh malurity of less than three months 200 12.70
Cash on hand _ 780 2.52
Total Cagh and cash equivalenis 10.88 — 3 230 7R

Mote: The above Statement of Gash Flows has been preparad Under the ‘Indirect Method' 85 set out I Ind AS 7, 'Statcment of Gash Flows',

The accompanyng susminary of significant accounting policies ond uther explanatery informtaion (notes] are an integral par of the Financial Statements

This is tha Cash Flow Staterment ielerred Lo in cur report of aven date.

For MKPS & Associates
Charlored Accountants
Fitn'e Ragn, Mo 302014k

Far and on bohalf of the Board

ra Khandal Kaushik Pal ﬁ:dan iyani
Har Lirector Director

fmbership Mo, | BE5025

Lrato: Aprl 14, 2017
Flace: Mumbai

DINO523 7230 CHN07

Drate: April 14, 2017
Place: Mumbai
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KM TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity

A EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

S ¥ Millions
. Balance at the Ghangaslln Equfh"r Balance at the end
Particulars Notes Kbk share capital during
ginning of the year of the year

g the year

Fer the year ended March 31, 2016 34.09 - 34.09

For the year onded March 31, 2017 34.09 - 34.09

B. OTHER EQUITY | _"{'_I"-'Iillipn.l:
Reserves and Surplus
Partlculars Noles Seourites Fromlum Roetained Earnings Total
Ressrve {Nots 8b)
(Nate 9¢)

Balance at April 01, 2015 305.91 2281 Ji8.82
Frafil for the year ) {124.75) {134.75)
Othar camprebensive income for the year o8] .19

Total comprehensive income for the year - B {134.56) t134.515;'

Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners ;
lzzue of aquity shares -
Dividend Paid =

Balance at March 31, 2016 305.91 {111.65) 194.26

Balance at April 01, 2016 305.91 {111.65) 194,26
Profit for the year {450.91) {490.91)
Other comprehensive income for the year 0.24 0.24

Tetal comprehensive income for the year - [480.67) {490.87)

Transaction with owners in their capacity as owners :

Issue of equity shares w
Dividend Paid

Balance at March 31, 2017 _ 305.91 {602.32) (296.41)

Ihis is statement of changs of equity referred fo in our report of even date,

Faor MKPS & Associales For and an behalf of the Board

Charered Accountants

Firm's Regn No. 302014E

I___Mdrgndra Khandal Kaushik Pal “Wadad Bifani

Partner Director Direct
embership Mo, ; 0AE02G DN 06237230 DIN.O7 30371

Date: April 14, 2097 Date: April 14, 2017

Place, Mumbai Place: Mumbai
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KM TOLL BOAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes to the Financial Statements

Note 1: Corporate information

KM Toll Road Private Limited was awzrded on Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT)
hasis strengthening of the existing cariageway from Km. 00.000 to Km. 73 400 on the Gandhidham
{Kandla) — Mundra section of Mational Highway No RA in the State of Gujarat and widening of existing 2
lane to 4/ 6 lane and its improvement, operation and maintenance lhrough a concession 4 Dasign,
Build. Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) basis under the Concession Agreement d ted March 10,
2010 with Mational Highways Aulhwority of India. The Coneession Agresmant is for a period of 25 years
from January 19, 2011, being the gppointed date. The Company is a whally waned subsialary of

Realiance Infrastructure Lid. |

Note 2: Basis of preparation

The Financial Statements of Company comprises of Balance Sheets as al Mareh 31, 2017 and March 31,
o016 Stalement of Profit and Loss,  Cash Flow statemnent and Statement of Changes in Equity for the
yoar anded March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2018 and Staternent of Nat Assets at | air Value as at March
31, 2017 and the Statement af Tolal Retum at fair value for the yoar anded March 31, 2017, a summary
of significant accounting policies, notes and gther explanatary Information,

The Financial Staterments of the Comjpany have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards {Ind A3} 85 prescribed under Section 133 of Companias Act, 2013 read with relevant rules and
other accounting principles. The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.
axcept for certain assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair valus.

For year ended March 31, 20417 and March 31, 2016, the Company prepared s financial stlatemanls in
accordance with accounting standards notified under the Saction 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (the Act)
[Companies(indian Accounting Standerds) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the act. For the
purpose of preparation of these Financial Statements, the transition date to Ind AS is considered as April
1, 2015 for the Company. [

The Financial Statements are preserted in T Millions, except where otherwise indicated.
Accounting standards issued but not yet effective

Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers' have been published by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
{MCA) but are not yel effective. Ind AS 115 establishes principles for reporting useful information to users
af the financial statements about the pature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from an entity's contract with customers. Ind AS 11 5 supersedes other revenue standards i.e. Ind
A5 11 and Ind AS 18 notified by MCA. Management has undertaken an assessment of the impact of this
standard and does not believe that the impacl would be material,

Mote 3: Summary of Significant accounting policies

41 Current versus non-current classification |

I
The Qompany presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

An assel is treated as current when il is:
+  Expacted to be realised or intended lo be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
= Expectad lo be realised within twelve manths after the reporting period, or

«  Cash or cash eguivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or uscd to sellle a liability for at least
twolve maonths after the reporting period

All ther assate are classified as non-current.

& ligbility is current whern.

= ltis expecied to be settled in normal operating cycle
= Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting pericd, or

«  There is no unconditional right to defer the settiement of the liabilit
it et ability for at least twelve months aflgf=——=_

L

All other liabilities are classified as non-cufrent.
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Deferred tax assels and liabilities are classified as non-current assels and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents The Company has identified twelve manths as its operating cycle.

Foreign currencies

Functional and presentation currency

ltemns inciudead in the financial statemeants cf the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic enviranment in which the entity cperates {'the functional currency'). The  financial statements
are presented in Indian Rupees () in Millions, which Is the Company’s functional and presentation
CUITEncy, i

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are tranziatad into tha functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the lransactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
seltlement of such transactions and from the franslation at year-end exchange rates of monelary assets
and liabilities denominaled in foreign currencies are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss with an
exception of the following:-

Under Ind AS 21 exchange differences arising on the translation/settiement of non-monetary item should
be treated as income or loss in Statement of Profit and Loss. However, Ind AS 101 gives an exemption for
exisling long tenm foreign currency non-monetary items wherein the Company can continue the policy
adopled for reatment of exchange differences arising on long-term fareign currency monatary ilems
pertaining to the acquisition of a depreciable asset tor items recognized on or before March 31, 2013,

For any new long term foreign currency non-monetary item recognized from or after first Ind AS financial
reporting period, deferralfamortization of exchange difference will not be allowed, rather the Company will
apply Ind A5 21 for recognition of gains and losses.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is Ihe price thal would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

= In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabilily

The principal ar the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generale economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it lo anolher market
participant that would use the assel in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valualion lechniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant abservable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assels and liakilities for which Tair value 15 measured or disclosed in the financial slalements =@e
categorized within the fair

valug hicrarchy, desciibed as follows, based on the lowest level input thal is significant to the fair value
measurament 43 @ whole: '

Level 1 - Quated (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 -Waluation technigues Tor which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assels and liabilties that are recognised in the financial stalements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transters have occurred between levels in the higrarchy by re-assessing calegori?égwﬁf'
ibased on the lowast level input thatiesignficant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the ¢ o

/
g
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each reporting period. |

The Coampany's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring and non —
recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unguoted financial aszsets measured
at fair value,

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are reguired to be re-measurcd or re assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this
analysis, the Management verifies the majar inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the
information in the valuation compulalion o contracls and other relevant documents,

Tha managemant also compares the change in the fair value of each assat and liability with relevant
gxtarnal sources o detarmina whather the changs is reasonable

Far the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assels and liabilitics on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.

Dizclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions of Financial instruments
{including those carried at amortised cost) (note 21) and Quantitative disclosures of fair value
measurement hierarchy (note 22),

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of lhe consideration received or receivable. The Company
recognizes revanus when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when il is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity, and when specific criteria have been mel for the Company's
activities, as describad below

Toll revenue
The income from toll revenue from operations of the facility is accounted on receipt basis,
Contract revenue (construction contracts) {

Contract revenue associaled with the censtruction of road are recognized as revenue by reference to the
stage of completion of the projects at the balance sheet date. Tha stage of completion of project is
delermined by the proporiion that contract cost incurred for work performed up to the balance sheet date
bears to the estimated lotal contract costs.

Contract cost includes costs that relate directly to the specific contract and allocated costs that are
attributable to the construction of the toll roads. Cost that cannot be attributed to the contract activity such
as general administralion costs are expansad as incurred and classified as other operating expenses,

Others
Insurance and oiher claims are recognized as revenue on certainty of receipt basis.

Inzome on investment is recognized based on the terms of the investmant. Income from mutual fund
scheme having fixed maturity plans is accounted on declaration of dividend or on maturity of such
investments. [nterest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the rales applicable. For all other financial assets measured at amortised cosl interes!
income is recorded using the Effective Interest Rate (CIR).

Accounting of intangible assats under sarvice concession arrangement

Company has Toll Road Concession rights where it Designs, Builts, Finances, Operates and Transfers
(BBFOT) infrastructure used to provide putlic service for a specified period of time. These arrangements

may include Infrastructure used in a public-fo-private service concession arrangement for its enlire useful
life,

These arrangements are accounted for based on the nature of the consideration. The intangible assa&"’;
model is used to the extent H‘l&%ﬁﬂw receives a right (a license) to charge users of the put

I
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service. The financial asset model is used when the Company has an unconditional contractual right to
recelve cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construcljon services.
When the unconditional right to receive cash covers only part of the service, the two maodels are combined
to account separately for each component. If the Company perfonms more than one servica (.8,
canstruction or upgrada services and operation services) under a single contract or arrangement,
consideration received or receivable is allocated by reference to the relative fair values of the services
delivered, when the amounts are scparately identifiable. f

Intangible assets model

Intangible assels arising oul ol service concession arrangaments are accounted for a8 intangible assels
where lhe Company has a contractual right to charge users of service when the projects are compleled.
Apart from above per lhe service concession agreement the Company is obligated to pay the amaunt of
premium to Mational Highways Authority of India (NHAI). This premium cbligation has hean traated as
Intangible assel given il is paid lowards gelling the nght o eam revenue by constructing and operaling lhe
roads durnng lhe concession period,

Hence, the total premium payable to the Grantor as per the Service Concession Agreement 15 also
recognized as an 'Intangible Assets' and the corresponding cbligation for committed pramium is
recognized as premium obligation.

Ihe intangibla assets is measured at the fair value of consideration transferred to acquire asset, which is
tha tair value of considerafion received or raceivable for the construction services delivered, |

Amortization of concession intangible assets

Tha Intangible asset recognized are amortized over the concession period on the basis of projected toll
revenue which reflects the pattern in which the assets economic benefits are consumed. The|projected
total toll revenue is based on the independent traffic volume prejections; Amortization is revised in case of
any material change in the expected pattern of economic benefits. Refer nole no 30 for description and
significant lerms of the concession agreemznts.

Financial assets model

The financial assel model applies when the operator has an unconditional right to receive cash or another
financial asset from the grantor in remuneration for concession services. In the case of concession
services, the operator has such an unconditienal right if the granter contractually guarantess the payment
of amount specified or determined in the contract or the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from
users of public service and amounts specified or determined in the Contract.

Financial Assets resulting from application of Appendix A and Appendix B of Ind AS 11 are recorded in the
staternent of financial position under the heading Cther Financial Assets and recognized at amortised cost.

However in case of certain arrangements, the contract may include a payment commitment on the par of
the concession grantor covering only part of investment, with the balance te be recovered from by charging
users of service . In such arrangements the investrment amount guaranteed by the concession grantor is
recognized under the financial asset model and the residual balance is recognized under the Intangible
azset modal,

Any asset carried under concession arrangzments is derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from ils fulure use or disposal or when the contractual rights|to the
financial asset expire. ' [

Maintenance obligations

Conlraclual obligations to maintain, replace or restore the infrastructure {principally resurfacing costs and
major repars and unscheduled maintenance which are required lo maintain the Infrastructure asset in
operational condition except for any enhancement element) are recagnized and measured at the best
eslimale of the expendifure required to scltle the present obligation at the balance shoet date for which
next resurtacing would be required as per the concession anangsmant, The provision is discounted to its
present value at a pre-tax rate that reflects current markel assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the llability,

Taxes

Current incomea tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expecled to be recovered from or

palid to the taxation authorities. Thg ?E rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that ‘yﬁ‘

enacled or substantively ena rling date in the countries where the Company operates
¢
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generales taxable income. Current income tax relating to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit
and Loss is recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in other comprehensive income or
in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OC1 or
directly in equity. Management perodically evaluates posilions taken in the tax returns with respect lo
situations in which applicable tax regulatiors are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions whera
appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
data. |

Deferrad tax habilities and assels ame recognized for all taxable temporary differences

Dafarrad tax assatz ara recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
losses can ba utilizad.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 1o the axtent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax assel to be utilized. Unrecognized defeired tax assets are re-assessed al each reporting date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that fulure taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recoverad.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are meazured at the lax rales that are expected to apply In the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relaling to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized outside
the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items
are recognized in correlation to the underly ng transaction either in OCI| or directly in equity. |

|
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offsel if a legally enforceable right exists tq: set off
current tax assets against current tax liabiliies and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same laxation authority.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attribulable to the acquisiion, construction or preduction of an asset thal
necessarily takes a subslantial period of time ta get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of he cost of the azset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Baorrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes excharge differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrawing costs.

Leases

Operaling lesse payments are recognized 3s an operating expense in the income staterment pn a straight
line basis over the leasa tarm

Premium Deferment

Premium Deferral (i.e. premium payable less paid after adjusting premium deferment} is aggr!sgalad under
premium deferred cbligation in the balance sheet. The interest payable on the above is aggregated under
deferred premium cbligation. interest on premium deferral is charged to the Statement of Frofit and Loss.

3.1 Cantingent liabilitics

A contingent liability is a pussible abligation that arises from past evenls whosa existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or nen-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cas =
where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The continéent
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liakility is not recognised in the books of account but its existence is disclosed in the Financial Statements.

311 Impairment of non-financial assets

Nan-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the earrying amount may not be recoverabie. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the
asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of asscssing impairment, assels
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). MNon-
financial assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impaimment at the end of
each reparting period.

[
3 12Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a presant obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
8 past event, it is probable that an outflow of rescurces embodying economic benefits will be;requlred to
selile the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. VWhen the
Company expects some or all of 8 provision to be reimbursad the reimbursement is rr,w;ognizéd asa
separate assat, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relaling to a provision is
prasentad in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that refiects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

3.13 Employee benefits
{i) Short term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 menths after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at
the amounts expected lo be paid when the liabilities are setiled. The liabilities are presentad as current
amployee benefit obligations in the balance sheat,

(i} Leave obligations
The Company provides sick leave and privilege leave to its employees.

Privilege and sick leave obligation is provided based en actuarial valuation which takes into account
the estimaled porlion of leave that will b encashed, availed and the portion that will lapse. The
portion that is expected to be encashed Is provided for based on the basic salary of the employes and
for the portion that is expected to be availed, the valuations are based on the employees' total
compensation The liability for earned leave is also classified as current where it is expected to be
availed/ encashed during the next 12 months. The remaining partion is classified as non-cument. The
amounts of current and non-current liability are based on actuarial estimates,

(iii} Post - employment obligations

The Company cperates various post-employment schemes, including
(a) defined benefil plans such as gratuity i
{(b) defined contnhution plans such as provident fund. |
|

Gratuity Obligations

The liakility or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefil gratuity plans is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value uf plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method,

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future

cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds
that have terms appreximating to the terms of the related obligation.

e T e,

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the dUﬁrIEf

’ |


41018371
Stamp

41018371
Stamp

41018371
Stamp


K TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes to the Financial Statements

3.14

3.15

318

3T

benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefil expense
in the slalement of profit and loss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in apluaria]
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehengive
income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the
balance sheeat.

Changes in the presant value of the defined benefit abligation resulting from plan amendmeants or
curtailments are recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service cost,

Defined Contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local
regulations. The group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid
I'he contribulions are accounted for as dzfined contribution plans and the contributions are
recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepald contributions are recognized
as an asset 1o the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Cash and cash equivalents i
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheel comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
depositz with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject lo an insignificant risk of
changes in value

Faor the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
daposits, as defined above, net of outstand ng bank overdrafts as they are considerad an integral part of
the Companys cash managemenl.

Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequentlly re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporiing period.

Trade Payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), If not, they are presented as
non-currant liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amorised cost using
the effective interest method.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any confract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial lability
er aquity instrument of another entity

Financial assects
Initial recognition and measurement

All inancial assels are recognised ntially st fair value, in the case of financial assets not recorded at Tair
value lhrough Stalemant of Protit and Loss| net of directly attributable transaction coslt Lo the acquisilion of
the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frama
established by regulaticn or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the
trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assels are classified in following categories:
=  at amortised cost

= at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

= al fair value through other comprahensive income (FVTOC])

Financial Assets at amortised cost
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Financial assets are measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a} The asszet is held within a business model whose objeclive is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cagzh flows, and

i} Contraclual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sclely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. f

This calegory is the most relevant to the Company. All the Loans and other receivables under financial
assels (excepl Invasimentis) are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
ara not quoted in an active market,

After initial measurament zuch financial aszets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Effactive Interast Rata (EIR) method. Amaorfisad cost is calculated by taking into account any discount ar
pramium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impainment are
recognized in the Statament of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to loans and other
recaivables.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Statemant of Profit and Loss/Other Comprehensive Income

All investments in scope of Ind AS 108 are measured at fair value, Companys has investmenl in Mutual
fund which are held for trading, are classified as at FVTPL. The Company makes such eleclicn on an
instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irevocable,

If the Company decides to classify an instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the Gther Comprehensive Income. There is no recycling
of the amounts from Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) to the Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale
of investment, However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Instruments
included within the FVTFL calegory are measured at fair value with all changes recognized i n thc.'
Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial
gsseis) is primarily derecognized (i.e. remaoved from the Company's balance shest) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
te pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through'
arrangement; and either {a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
assef, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred contral of the asset,

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an assel or has enlered into 2
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neithar transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards af the
assel, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferrdd asset to tha
exlent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes pn associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Commpany has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with ite asests
carriad at amortised-cost and FVOCL The Impairment methedology applied depends on whether there has
baen a significant Increase in credit risk.

The Coempany has three lypes of financial assets subject ta Ind AS 109's expected credil loss model
=  Loans receivables measured at amaort sed cost

= Retentions receivable, grant receivablz from NHAI
= Loans given to employees

The impairment methodology for pachelags of financial assets stated above is as follows:
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Loans receivables measured at amorised cost. Loans receivables at amortised cost are generally shart
term in nature considercd 1o be low risk, and thus the impairment provision is determined as 12 months
expected credit losses.

Leans given to employees: For loans given to employees culstanding as on the reporting dates, the has
determinad reliably that assessing the probability of default at the initial recognition of each and every loan
or receivable would result in undue cost and effort. As permitted by Ind AS 109, the credit provision will be:
determined based on whether credit risk is low only at each reporting date, until the loan is derecognized,
Using the impairment methodology the Group has assassed that no loan luss allowance needs to be
recorded in the books of accounts.

Fxpacted credil loss [ECL') impalrment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is
recognized as income! expensa in the Stalsment of Prefit and Loss (P&L). This amount is reflacted und_er
the head 'other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments 15
described below: [

Financial assets measured as at amortizec cost and other contractual revenue receivables - EGL is
presentad as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance
sheat Tha allowance reduces the net carrving amount. Until the assel meets write-off criteria, the
Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liakilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabililies a1 fair value through Statement
of Profit and Less, loans and borrowings, irade payables or other payables.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value,

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and other payables,

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. Afler initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subseguently measured al amortized cost using the EIR method. However, the Companys
has borrowings at floating rates. The impact of restatement of effective interest rate, year on year due o
resel of interest rate, is not material. Gaing and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
when the liabilities are derecognized as wall as through the transaction cost amortization process.

Retention money payable

This is the category most relevant to the Company. Retention money are measured at Fair value initially.
Subsequently, they are measured at amortised cost using the EIR (Effective interest rate) method. Gains
and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabililies are derecognized as well as
through the EIR amorlizalion process,

De-recognition

M financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. YWhen an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the sams landar on sibstantiaily
different terms, or the lerms of an axisting liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
madification is reatad as the de-recogniticn of the original liabilty and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying € mounts is recognized in the Stalement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial iahilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal rightito offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention Jel =S
setftle on a net basis, o realize the assets and seftle the liabilities simultanecusly, -
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Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurameant

The Cormpany uses derivative financial inslruments —principal only swaps to hedge its foreign currency
risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value en the dale on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as financial assefs whan the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivalives are taken directly to Statement of
Profit and Loss,

Segment information

The Company is engaged in "Road Infrastructure Projact” which in the context of Ind AS 108 Oparaling
Segment” is considered as the only segment. The Company's activities are restricted within India and
hence, no separate geographical segment disclosure is considered necessary,

Critical accounting estimates and judgements |

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
believed o ba reasonable under the circumstances. |

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the relaled aclual results, The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities are disclesed
below.

{i) Applicability of service concession arrangement accounting to toll roads concessionaire
arrangements

The Company has determined that Appendix A of Ind AS 11 'Service concessicn arrangements’ is
applicable to the Company which provides on accounting by the operators for public-lo-private service
concession arrangements. The Company has entered into concession arrangement with NHA! as per which
the group would parlicipale in the Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) basis the toll
roads infrastructure. After the end of the concession arrangement, the Company has to transfer the
infrastructure i.e. toll roads constructed to National Highway Authorilies of India (NHAI).

Accordingly Company has recognized the ntangible assets recognized az per the accounling|policy
mentioned in Mote no 3.5 'Accounting of intangible assets under service concessionaire arrangement’,

(il) Income taxes

The Company has recognized deferred tay assets relating to carried forward tax losses to the extent there
are sufficient taxable termporary differences relating to the same taxation authority against which the unused
tax losscs can be utilized. Howeaver, the utllization of lax losses also depends on the ability of the Company
lo satisly cerain tests at the time the losses are recouped. Managemant has torecasied fulure taxable
profits and has lherefore recognized deferred tax assets in relation to tax losses

{iii}Amortization of concession intangible assets

The Intangible asset recognized are amoifised over the concession period on the basis of projected toll
revenue which reflects the pattern in which the assets economic benefils are consumed. The projected total
toll revenue is based on the independent taffic volume projections; Amartization is revised in case of any
matearial change in the expected pattermn of economic benefits.

{lv] Impairment of concession intangib/e assets

The Company tests intangible assets and cash generating units have sutfered any impairmeng, in

accordance with the accounting policy staled in note 3.11. Tha recoverable amount of each cash -;_ﬁ-"q
generating unit has been determined based on the greater of value-in-use and fair value |ess costs (g sl
calculations. These calculations require the use of assumptions regarding traffic flows, discount ratE -, ':.f;#

T,
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growth rates and other factors affecting operating activities of the cash generating units.
{v) Fair valuation of derivatives and other financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined us}:g yaluation
techniques. The Company uses its judgmenls to select a variety of methods and makes assumplions that
are mainly based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet daie,

{vi) Provision for resurfacing cbligation (major maintenance cxpenditure)

The Gompany records the resurfacing obligation for its present obligation as per the concession
arrangemenl to maintain the fall roads at every five years during the cencession period. The provision is
included in the finandial siatements al the present value of the expecled future payments. The calculations
1o discount these amounts to their present value are based on the estimated timing of expendilure QECUrTnG
on lthe roads.

The discount rate used to value the resurfasing pravision at its present value is determined through
reference to the nature of provision and risk. associated with the expendilure.
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Nota 4 - Intangible assets (including intangible assets under development)

T Millions

Particulars

Tall Collection rights

NHAI Premium

Intangible asscts
under development
|

MNel carrying amount as at April 1, 2016 - - 8,065.68
Year endad March 31, 2016

Opening gross carrying amount 2 Rkl
Mdditions 8,045 35 4 598.74 1,909.62
Caplaliscd 904035
Closing gross carrylng amount 9,049.35 4,588.74 1,825.94
Accumulated Amortization and impairment

Cpening accurmulated Amartizelion and impaiment - - -
Amartization charge for the year B0.52 30.94

Capitalised

Closing accumulated Amortization and impairment 60.52 30.94 - um
Met carrying amount as at April 1, 2016 8.288.83 4 557.80 1.825.84
Year ended March 31, 2017

Cpening gross carrying amount 8,049,235 450874 1,825.54
Additions 0.04 - 40802
Capitalised/ AdjustedDisposal 2283

Closing gross carrying amount 9,048.39 4,575,681 | 223386
Accumulated Amortization and impairment

Opening accumulated Amorfization and impaiment 60.52 30.84

Amortization charge for the year 142 66 73.45

Capitalsed

Closing accumulated Amortization and impairment 203.18 104.39 -
Met carrying amount £.846.21 4477142 2,233.96
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Naote 5 - Financial Assets - Gurrent £ Mitlinia
As at As at As at
|
Farbssine March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Naote 5 {a) - Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash and cash eguivalents
Balgngos with banks
- im current accounts 5.07 21508 a1.2v
Dopaosits with maturity of less than threc months 2.90 1270
Cash on hand 280 252 -
10.88 230.28 31.27
Nate 5 (b} - Other financial assets - current
Security doposits 10.70 074 012
Retantion money receivable from NHAI 7.GE FAT B.0H
Others 321 E 0.20
Claims Recaivania From NHAI 54.82 - 0.00
76.42 7.92 8.88
Maote & - Other non-currant assets
Capital Advance - - 823
Graluity Advance 0.03 0.02 E—
0.03 0.02 8.23
MNote T - Other current assets
Advance to vendors 7.14 6.865 358
Advance to employees 3.33 1.19 0.05
Prepaid Expenses BT 4.94 g.52
Duties and taxes recaivable 5.37 1.50 19.47
21.72 14.28 32.63
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Nate & - Share Capital and Other eguity

Nate 2a - Authorised Shara Capital

| . £ Milllons
Particulars Mos of Shares As at g al As at

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015

Al the heginning of lhe year 1,00,00,000 100,00 [ 10000 100.00

Add - Increase during 1he yaar of 710 each = ky

Al the end of the year 1040.00 1EICI.I_IJL 10000

Note Bb - Issuad, subscribed and paid-up equity

share capital

AL e baginning of the yoar 34 08,000 3408 34.09 34.00

Add : Shares issued durlng the yew gl 210 each - &

At the and of the yoar i 34.08 34.08 3404

Note 8c - Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of shares referred 1o as Eouity Shares having a Par Value of Rs.10/-.

Noto 8d - Reconciliation of nos of 8hares

Mos of Shares at the beginming of the year 34,089,000 134, 09,000 24, 00,000

Add - Mos of 2hares issued during he year = 5

Nos of Shares at the end of the year T 54.09.000 54,089,000 34,009,000

Mote Be - Shares held by holding Company / ultimate holding

Company or their subsidiaries/associates

Relignce Infrastructure Limited

{immediate and Litimate Holding Company) 34 09,000 34.,09,000 34.05.000

Nate 8f - Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Reliance Infrastructure Limited

Mos of Shares 34,090,000 34,08,000 34 0% 000

% of holding 100% 100% 100%
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— — ¥ Millicns
L Marc:;:.lzmr Marc:.;:l:?m 6 .ﬁ.pr;ﬁ .a;ms
Mota 9a - Sub-ordinatad debt :I_n nature of equity)

At the beginning of the vear | 3402 50 2362.30 1700.70
Increase f (decreasc) during the yeoar 301.00 1040.20 BE1.80
At the end of the year A7H3 50 . __34_(]2.5{] 2.343:2.30_

Terms and rights attached to Sub-ordinated debts infused by Sponsor alongwith its Subsidiaries
1y Subordinated dabt iz tha part of Sponsars Equity fram the promoters of the Company for the project. which is unsecured and

interast free as per Common Loan Agreement with the lenders;

ii] No repayment! redemption/ interest servicing allowed during the moratorium period of the long term prujec.,!t loan,

Mote 9b - Retained Earnings

Al the beginning of the year (111.65) 22 91 (2.55)
Net Profit for the year {490.91) {134.75) 2542
lems of other comprehensive income recognised directly in
retained earnings i

- Remeasuremens of post-employements obligations 0.24 019 0.04

(net of tax)

Dividends paid during the year = = -
At the end of the year (602 32) (111.65) 22.91
MNote 9¢ - Securities Premium Account
At the beginning of the year 305.91 30%.91 305.91
Premium on shares issued during the year - - -
At the end of the year 305.81 305 91 30591

Mature and purpose of securities premium

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accofdance with the

prowisions of the act,
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Mote 10 - Borrowings - Mon current 2 Millinns
As at Az at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
1
Secured
Tarm loans |
From hanks
Rupee tarm laan 5,164.64 545106 4,568,566
[
Fram financial inatitutions
Foreign currency loan 1.236.12 1,375 Bog.149
Total €,400.76 6,836.27 5,487.85
Secured by: .

a) hirst mortgege end charge of all immovable properties, present and future, save and axcept tha prajact Assets.
) Furst cherge by way of hypothecetion of all movable assets, both present and future, save and axcept the project Assers
¢} First charge on all intangible assets save and except Project assels,

d) First Charge on receivatles, book dabts, cash and cash equivalents including any other bank accounts and other assets, present and
tuture. ) ;

) First Charge on government approvals, insurance policies, uncalled capitel, project documents, guarantees, latler of credit, perfarmance
warranties, indemnities andg securilies given (o the Corrpany.

Repayment Terms for Term loans (- Starls from 15t Dec 2014 in 44 quarterly installmants and will be paid til {15th Mar 2027

|
Repayment Terms for ECB ;- The repayment of loan will starl from 15th Jun 2018 in 23 guartarly installmants @and will be paid till 15th Jun
2024

Note 11 - Trade Payables

Trade Payables 104 .45 286.02 -
104.45 286.92 -

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

Disclosure of payable 1o vendors as defined under the "Micro, Small and Medium Entzrprise Development Act, 2006" is based on tha
informaton available with the Company regarding the siatus of registration of such vendors under the said Act, as per the intimation
received from them on requests made by the company. There are ne overdue principal amounts/interest payable amounts for delayed
paymenis 1o such vendors at the Balance Sheet date, There are no delays in paymen! made to such suppliers during tha year or for any
earlier years and accordingly there is no interest paid o outstanding interest in this regard in respect of payments made during the year ar
brought forward from pravious years.

Mote 12 {a) - Other financial liabilities - current

|
Current Maturities ol long term debt 453,74 ’Id[] 13 266.30
WHAI Premium Fayable 359.14 - -
Inlerest Accrued 3.4 IE.EE 302
Creditors far Capital expenditurs 21006 194,62 477.72
Employae banfits payahle 4.67 R 011
Retention Maney Payahle 131.09 - B
Total 1,171.83 394,34 74714

Note 12 (b) - Other financial liabilities - Non - current
NHAI Pramium Payahls _ 4 716.74 4 481,25 -
Retantion monsy payable 7.22 113.17 09 5A

Total 4,723.97 4 574.42 209.68
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Mote 13 (a) - Provisions - Current T Milliens
As at As at As al
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Current
Provision for employes benefits
- Leava ancashmeant 0.10 008 0.0e
0.10 0.09 0.08
Wote 13 (b) - Pravisions - Non - Current
Provision far employes banafits
- Leave ancashmeant 2 48 2,25 106
Cthars |
- Resurtacing expenses 126.88 _En.8T -
129,37 38.12 1.56

Movemant In Provisions
Resurfacing provisions

Al the beginning of the year 35.87 - -
Charged ! (credited) to profit or loss
Frovision mads during the year g7.12 36.87 -
unused amount reversed - [ = -
unwinding of discount 3.89 g =

Amount utihsed during the year - - i

At the end of the year 12688 35.87

Resurfacing provisions - significant estimates

As per the service concession arrangement with NHAI, the Company Group is obligated to carry out resurfacing of the roads under
concession. The Company Group estimates the likely provision reguired towards resurfacing and accrues the costs on a siraight line basis
over the period at the end of the which resurfacing wou ld be required, in the Statement of Profit and Loss in accordance with Ind AS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assels.

Mote 14 - Other current liabilities

Duties and taxes payable 1.32 0.15 052
1.32 0.15 0.52
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Mote 15 - Revenue

Operating income

- Construction income

- Income from toll collections

- Compensation towards toll suspention

Nota 16 - Other income
Dividend Income on current investment

Interest income
- On fixed deposits
- Dthers

Miscellaneous income

Note 17 - Toll Operation and Maintainence expenses

Subcontracting expenses
Maintainence of Roads
Electricity expenses

Handling Charges

Site and other direct expenses

MNote 18 - Employee benefits expenses

Salaries wages and bonus

Contribution to provident funds and other funcs
Gratuity

Leave encashment

Staff welfare expenses

Mote 19 - Finance Costs

Interest on loan

Interest unwinding on premium deferment
Unwinding of discount on provisions
Other finance charges

Unwinding of discount on retention money

Note 20 - Other expenses

Rent

Rates & taxes

Insurance

Legal and Professional Charges
Auditors Remuneration
Travelling and Conveyance
Other miscellaneous expenses

T Millions

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Year ended
March 31, 2016

262.39 1,337.98
758 57 206.58
54,82 .
1,075.77 1,634.58
0.02 0.45
1.57 1.25
3.42
0.02 —
5.02 1.71
33.19 1930
102.34 4542
7.78 4.14
1.30 0.61
18.15 17.97
162.76 79.24
13.60 17.28
0.54 0.24
0.40 0.41
0.23 0.20
0.94 I §
15.71 18.44
593.74 234.29
535.35 5
3.89 "
24.96 5.42
21.86 814
1,179.80 247.85
1.08 0.76
0.40 0.20
8.21 18.33
14.35 16.52
0.37 0.35
1.5 1.41
3.83 s, 6.49
29.79 - 44.04
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Note 21 - Fair value measurements

Signficance of financial instruments

Classification of financial instruments

Financial assets

At amortised Cost
Security Deposits
Insurance Claim receivablas
Retention Money receivable from NHAI
Cash and Cash equivalent
Claims Hecaivable Fram NHAI

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities
At amortised Cost

Floating Rate Borrowings
Trade Payables
Retention money payable
MHAI Pramium Payable
Interest accrued but nof due
Employee Benefits Payable
Creditors for capital expenditure

Total financial liabilities

T Millions
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
070 0.74 n12
3.21 2 0.20
7.68 7T 8,55
10.88 230.28 3127
54 82
87.29 23820 40.15
| 18
6854.50 026 40 5734.15
104.45 865.92 .
138.32 113.17 209.58
5,085.88 4 481.25 -
3.24 565 3.02
4 67 444 0.1
210.05 194 62 47772
1240111 12092.45 6424.57
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Note 22 - Fair value Hierarchy

{a} Fair value hierarchy - Recurring fair value measurements

T Milhians

As al As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Az at
April 1, 2015

Financial aszats

At Fair value through profit & loss
Lewvel 1
Mutual fund Investmenls % 7

Total financial assels - 3 4

Financial liabilitics
Derivatives not designated as hedges

Level 2
Principal swap " s

Total financial liahilities = 5

{b} Fair value hierarchy - Assets and liabilities which zre measurad at amortised cost for which fair
values are disclosed
Financial assets |

Level 3
Grant receivable from NHAL " -

Tolal financial assots % %

Financial liabilities

Level 3

Floating Rate Borowings 6854.50 T026.40
Retention money payable : 138,32 11317
NHAI Premium Payable 5,085.88 4,461.25

573415
209,58

Total financial liabilities 12078.70 11600.82

5843.73

|
Recognised fair value measurements

Level 1. Lavel 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using guoted prices. This includes mutual fupds
that have quoted price. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2. The fair value of financial instrumenis that are nct raded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
denvabves! is determined using valuation echnicues which maximise the use of chservable market data and
rely as little as possible on entity-spacific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
inztrument are obeenvable, the instrument is includad in lesval 2

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on obsarvable market data, the instrument is included In
level 3. Thiz is the case for borrowings, debenlures, Rerention money payable and hedying dernvative
included in laval 3

Valuation technigue used to datarmina fair valus

Spacific valuation tachniques used to value financigl instruments include,

- the use of quated market prices or dealer quotes for similar instrumants

+ the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts and principal swap Is determined using forward exchange rates
at the balance sheet dale

» tha fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis,
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(¢} Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

: 3 Millicns
As at As at | As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Financial assets
Carrying value of financial assets at amortised cost
Grant receivable from NHAI i 5 _
Total Financial assets at amortised cost o v I T 3
Fair value of financial assets carried at amortised cost
GGrant receivable from NHAI
Total Fair value of financial assets at amortised cost B - -
Financial liabilities
Carrying value of financial liabilities at amortised cost
Floating rate borrowigns 6 854 .50 T7.026.40 573415
Depbentures - - -
Retention money 138.32 13.17 209 58
NHAI Premium Payable 5,085.88 4 461.25 -
12,078.70 11,600.82 5,043.73
Fair value of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Floating rate borrowigns 8,854.50 7.026.40 573415
Debentures B £y 2
Retention maney 138.32 11347 20958
NHAI Premium Payable 5,085.88 4,461.25 -
12,078.70 11,600.82 5.943.73

The carrying value amounts of fixed deposits, interest accrued on depaists, retention money receivable,
insurance claim receivable, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, interest accrued, employee benefits
payable and creditors for capital expenditure approximate their fair value due to thair shoirt term nature.

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amaunts are equal to the fair

values.
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Mote 23 Foreign currency exposure

Parliculars of derivative Ingtruments

Principal only Swap
Ma of Instrumenis

Mo clervative instruments are acouined lor speculEtion purpose.

Fareign currency exposures not hedged by derivative instiument or

atherwise:

Bomowings (ncluding interest ssorued bul not due) in USD in millene
Borrowings {incleding intarast ascrued but not due) in INK in millions

Note 24 Expenditura in Foreign Currency

Interest on Exlernal Commercial Barrewings {ECB)
Professional Fees and Comitment Fes
Any additlonal itemsz

Mote 25 Defarral Capitalisation of Exchange Difference

- o B T Mlillans
As at A oal As at

March 31, 2007 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015

&8 0,05 14 63

1,208.08 1 ARE 85 21452

1,306.08 1,988.56 B14.62

T1.03 ha417 38.76

0.22 2.25 .67

_ 7125 8647 __ 3932

The Campany had apted to defer / capitalize exchange differences arising on long-lerm foreign cumency monetary items in accordance with
paragraph 464 of AS 11, However, Ind AS 21 requiras all exchange gainlassas arising an farsign currency monaetary 1o be recognised under
statemanl of profit and loss. Ind AS 101 gives an option whereby the Cempany will continue its indian GAAP policy far accounting for exchange
differences arsing from fransiation of long-term foreign curransy monatary ftems recognised in the Indian GAAP Financial Stptamants for the periad

ending immadiataly befors the baginning of (he first Ind AS financial reporting perod

Hewvever, for any new long tarm fereign curmency monetary (bem recognised from the first Ind AS financial reparing period, the Company will fodlow

Ind A5 21 for recognilicn of gains and losses.
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Mote 26 Foreign currency risk exposure

Financial liabilities
Interest Accrued but not due on foreign borrowings
Externel Sommercial Borrowings

Total

Sensitivity
Impact on profit after tax

INR/USD closing exchanga rate
INFSUSD (increase) by 6%
INRIUSD decreass by 8%

T Milllons
As at As at J As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 201 April 1, 2016

324 224 212

1,302.84 13Tl 512 650

1,306.08 1 .385.9!:1:: 914.62

6485 £6.255 82.50
{D.15) {0.11) {0.10)

015 011 010


41018371
Stamp

41018371
Stamp


KM TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes to the Financial Statements

Mote 27 - Financial risk management
The Company activities exposes it to market risk, liguidity sk and credit risk.
This note explains the source of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entily is manage the risk.

Risk Exposure arising Moasurement Management
fram
Credit risk Cash and cash Aging analysis Cwersilication of
gquivalents, trads Cradit ratings bank deposits,
receivablas, financial credit limitz and
aszels measurad at lattars of credit

amortised cost,

Market risk — intsrest rate Long-term borrowings  Senstivity anafysis  Activaly Managad

at variakle
Liguidity risk : Borrowings and other  Roliing cash flaw Availability of
liabilitlas forecasis commitiad aredit
lines and barrowing
Facilities

The Company s risk management is caried out by a project finance leam and central treasury team (group freasury) under policies
approved by board of diractors. Group treasury identifiies, evaluates and hedges financial risk in close co-aperation with Lhe QIoup’s
nparating units. The Management of the Company provides written principles for overgll nsk managemenl, as well as policias cavaring
specific areas, such as interest rate risk and cradit risk, uze of derivative financial instrument and non-derivative financlal instrument, and
investments of excass louldity.

Commodity risk:

The Company requires for implemantation (construction, operation and mainlenance) of the projects, such as cemsnt, Bitumen, steel and
other construction materials. Far which, the Company entzred inle fixed price centract with the EPC contractar and D&M Contractor 5o as
o manage our exposure to price Increases in raw materizls. Hence, the sensitivity analysis is not reguired

Market risk — interest rate risk |

The Bank loans follows floating rates with resets defined under agreements. While interest rate flucluations camy a risk an financials, the
Company eam 1all insome which is linked to WP thus providing & natural hedge to the interest raie risk.

a) Interast rate risk exposure T Millions
As at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 20135

Wariable Rate Borrowings 6,854 50 T.026.40 573415
Fixed Rate Borrowings = - -

Total 8,854.50 7,026.40 ~ 5,734.15

b Sensitivity analysis
Profit or loss is sensitiva te higher/lowar interest income from borrowings as a result of changes in interesl rales.

Impact on profitloss after tax

Inberest rales (increase) by 1 basis points (54.15) [55.51) {45.30)
Interest rates decrease by 1 basis points 54.15 55.5 45.30
|
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Liguldity risk

Ligguldity risk i the risk that tha Company may not be able to mest its present and future cash and collsterzl oblgations witnout incumng

uracceptahle laszes. The Company objective |s to, &t
The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a rabust
including debt from banks at an oplimized cost Tha liquidity risk is manage
The average credit period laken to settie rade paysbles s about 30 ta 60 days. The canying amounts are assumead fo be

The table below analyses the group's non-derivativa financlal liabdities end

all limes maintain optimum levels of liquidity to maet its cash and col aloral requiremants.
cash management systam, |t malintains adequate sources of financing
d on tha basle of expected maturity dates of the financial liabillics.

reasonabla

nizt settled darvativa financial ligbilities inta relevant

yratuiity groupings based on the remaining pericd 8t the balance shieet data to the contraciual maturity date, Derivative financial
liabilitizs ane ncluded in the analysis if Wweir contractual maturitizs are essuntial for an understanding of the liming of the cash
fiows. The amounts disciored in the table are the contraciual undiscounted cash flows

¥ Millinne
As at March 31, 2017 Less than 3 Botwoen 3 Bolween 1 Batwoon 2 yoars Ovor § years Total
manths months and 1 yoar and 2 and § years
yaar "EHIB
MNon-derivatives
Barrowings T9.29 368.82 G87.40 2.5831.13 3,200.47 B BEE 21
Trade and other payablas 2611 7834 104 45
Cithar financial linbilities 127.48 £ 303.84 - _* 5.431.37
Total non-derivatives 232,99 5.752.00 GHT.40 2,531.13 3,200.47 12403.98
As at March 31, 2016 Less than 3 Between 3 Between 1 Beotween 2 years Over 3 :.mérs Total
manths months and 1 yoear and 2 and 5 years
yaar years
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 210.97 370.76 748,55 2418490 328310 7.043.27
Trade and cther payables 7173 215.1% - - - 28B.92
Cther financial liabilities - 4 655 96 127.48 - - 4,793 44
Total non-derivatives 282.70 5,251.90 877.03 2,418.90 3,293.10 12,123.63
As at April 1. 2015 Less than 3 Batwean 3 Between 1 Between 2 years Ovor 5 years Total
months manths and 1 year and 2 and § yoars
year yoars
MNan-derivatives
Borrowings - 133.15 451.85 2.218.88 2,049.85 §,753.73
Trade and other payables - - - " - .
Cither financial liabilities g01.27 = 131.26 £ 732.53
Total non-derivatives A 734.42 451.85 2,350.14 2,949.85 £,485.25

s
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KM TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes to the Financial Statements

Note 28 - Capital risk management

The Company objectives when managing capital are to

safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, and

. Maintain an optimal capital struclure to reduce the cost of capital,

For the purpose of the Company capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium, sub-debis and all
" pther equity reserves atiributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company capital
management is to maximize the shareholder valua.

The Company managss its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue interest free sub-ordinate debt. The Company monitars
capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company palicy is to

keep optimum gearing ratio. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borropings, trade payables,
less cash and cash equivalents.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company capital management, amongst other things, ajms 1o ensure that it
meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and barrowings that define capital sfructure eguirements. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital for half year ended|March 31, 2017 and
March 21, 2016

Consistent with others in the industry, the group maonitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:

Net debt including total borrowings {net of cash and cash equivalents)
divided by
Total ‘equity’ (as shown in the balance sheet).

The Company strategy is to maintain a debt to equity ratio within 1.86 to 2.00.The gearing ratios at hﬁarch 31, 2017 and March

31, 2016 were as follows:

! T Millions
Particulars As at As at | As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2d15 April 1, 2015
Met debt (a) B,843.62 6,756.12 5,436.58
Equity (b} 3,531.18 3,630.85 2,725.21
Met debt to equity ratio {a) / (b) 1.94 1.87 1.99
Particulars As at As at As al
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2015
Met debt (a) 6,843.62 6,796.12 5,436.58
Equity (b) 2,521.18 363085 272521
MNebt debt plus Equity {c = a+b) 10,374 .80 10,426.97 8,161.78
Gearing ratio (a) / ¢ 0.66 0.65 0.67
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KM TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes to the Financial Statements

Mote 29 - Related Party Transactions

As per accounting standard Ind AS 23 as prescribed undel the Companies {Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015,

the Company's related parties and transachions are disclosed below ©

Sponsor Company
Reliance Infrastructure Limited

Key Management Personnel

Kaushik Pal - Chisf executive officar (w.ef. Oclober 1, 2015)
Sudhir R Hogshing - Chiel executive officer {till Fehruary 28, 2015)
Madan Biyani - Chief financial officer (w.e.f. March 31, 2015)

Person having singificant influence on the Sponsor Company
Shr Anil 0. Ambani

Enterpriscs over which person described in (iii) above has significant influence
Reliance Cammunications Enterprises Private Limited (formarly A&A Communications Private Limited (RCEPL)

Details of transactions and closing balance

Particulars

Transactions during the year :

Toll operation and maintainence expenses (including project
execution support services)
R Infra

Reimbursement of expenditure paid by
R Infra

Sub-debts received {in nature of equity)
R Infra
Balances at the year end

Other current liabilities
R Infra

Sub-debts {in nature of equity)
R Infra

Equity share capital (excluding premium)
R Infra

- ks I'u"Ii_.IIiuns
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
|
12.40 784
13.12 B.43
391.00 1.040.20
39.62 16.20 363
3,783.50 3,402/50 2,362.30
34.08 34,09 34.09
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KM TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note - 31 Earning per share B ¥ Millions
. Year ended Year ended
P

articulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018
Prafit/ Loss atiributabla to equity sharehaolders (Rs Millicng) (A) {480.81) (134.75)
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and diluted samings per share (B) 34,009,000 3408000
Earnings / (Loss) per share (Basic and diluted) (Rupees) (A/B) (144.00) (39.53)
Maominal value of equity shares (Rupaas) 10.00 10.00
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KM TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes to the Financial Statements

Mote 32 - Gratuity and other post-empleyment benefit plans * Millicns
a) Defined contribution plan

The following amaunt recogrized a5 an expensa in Statement of profit and koss on account of provident fund and other funds.
Ihere are no othar obligations other than the conlibution payable to the respactive aulhorities.

Az at As at As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015

Contribution o provigdent fund and other funds 063 0.55 .57
Total . 0.63 | 0.55 0.57
e |
g} Defined benalil plan
The Company Group lias a definad benafit plan (Gratuity) for its employees. The gratuily plan is govemed by the Paymant of Gratuity Act, 1972,

member's length of service and salary at retirement age. Every employes who has completed five years or more of Rervi gets & gratuily on
departure st 15 days salary {lasl drawn salary) for each complated year of service as per the provision of the Paymenl o Gratuity Act, 1872 with tatal

Undar the Act, employes who has compleled five yesrs of servica is entitlad to specific benefit. The level of benefils provuicd depends an the
ceiling on gratuity of Re.1 000,000/, The said gratuity plan is funded,

The following tablas summarias the The ameunts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net definad benaflt ebligation over the
year are gs follows:

Opening defined benafit liability | (assets) 2.32 2.04 1.53
Net emplayes bencfit axpense recognised in the employee cosl

Currant service cost 043 0473 42
Pas| seqvice cost - = -
Intarast cost on benefit obligation 018 016 D13
{5ain) f losses on settlement - - -
Mot bonofit expense D81 0.59 0.56

Amount recorded In Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Measurement during the penod due to © |

Raturn on plan assels, excluding amounts included in ifarast expansa{income) . - ;
Actuarial loss [ (gain} arlging from change in financial assumptions 021 0.1 024

Actuarial loss ! (gain} ansing on account of demographic assumptiens - 2 -
Expenance (gainslosses (0.59) {032y (0.11)
Amount recognized in OCI [0.38) (0.3 0.14
Renefits paymants from plan - l - (0.19)
|

Closing net defined benefit liability / (asset) 2.55 2.32 2.04
Opening falr value of plan assets 2.534 2.04 1.47
Met employes boneflt expense récngnisad in the employae cost

Interest cost/ (income) on plan asset 020 0.18 014
[Gain] / osses on settlement > - =
Met benefit expense 0.20 018 014

Amount recorded In Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Megsuremenl durirg the penod dua o

Raturn on plan assats, axcluding ameounts inciuded in interest expense/{income) {0.01) 0.0} 020
Aciuanal loss J {gain) ansing from change in financial assumptions -

Actuarial loge / {gain} arising cn account of demographic assumplions - :

Experignge (nainsplossoes - -

Aszet ceiling not recognised as an assa = =

Amaoumt recognized In OGI (0.01) (01 0.20
Employer contributions/premivms paid .07 014 042
Benefits Paid - - .18

Closing fair value of plan assels »na 234 2.04
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KM TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

T Millions
As at at Asal
Particulars March 31, 2017 Harn!‘nt 2018 April 1, 2015
The net {lizbility)fassel disclosed above ralates to funded plan is as lollows: |
Presont value of fundad cbligatlons 2.55 2.3z 2.04
Fair vatua of plan assets 2684 2.4 204
Amount not recognised as an assel {assai cailing) o I
003} (0.02) 0.00_
Mot llability is bifurcated as follows :
Current = = *
Mar-current 10.03) §002) 0.00
Total {0.0:3) ooz 0.00
LHscount rate 7.05% T80 B
Expected rale of relurn on plan assets (pa.}
Salary ascalation rate (p.a.) T.50% T.50% 7.50%
Indian Assurad Indiam Assured Ingian Assured
Maortality pre-refirernent Lives Mofally Lives Motality Lives Monality
{2005-04) (2006-08) {2U0E-08]
A quantitative analyeis for significant assumption is as show Delow:
Assumplions -Discount rate
Sensltivity Level S0 bp 50 bp S0 bp
Impact on defined benafit obllgation -in % increass 5.57% | -5.52% -5 98%
Impact on defined benefil obligation -in % decrease G.00%: | 5.04% fi 45%
Assumptions -Future salary Increases
Sansitivity Level 50 bp 50 bp 50 bp
Impact en defined banefit obligation -in % increase 5.95% 5§.93% G.44%
Impact on defined benefit obligation -in % decrease -5.58% -5 56% -5.00%

The tabla below shows the expected cash flaw profila of ihe benafits to be paid to the current membership of the plan bagzed on past service of the

employees as at the valuation data:

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)
Betwean 2 and 5 years

Between B and 9 years

For and Beyond 10 yaars

Total expected payments

The avarage duration of the defined benefit plan obligatien at the end of the reporting

neriod
Plan Assets Composition

MNon Quotod
Ingurer Managed Funds

0.07 0.a7 0.08
0.3% 0.35 030
0.54 0.48 0.41
545 548 5.4l
G641 5.40 6.20
11.58 years 11.45 years 12.39 yoars
2,59 | 2534 2.04
2.58 | 2:34 2.04
|
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KM TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED |
Notes to the Financlal Statements |

Mote 33 - FIRST TIME ADQPTION OF IND AS |
The Company has prepared fhese Financial Statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for the pariods ending March 31, 2017 fogathir with the comganative
period data a5 al and for the yoar ended Narch 31, 2016 respectively a: descbed in he summary of signficant accounding policies. In preparing these financial
ciatemenle, the Company has considered Apdl 01, 2015 as the date of {ransition and has adjusiod the amounts reported previousty m the fimancial staternents
pregared in azcordance with (ke accounting atandards notlied undes Companies (Aocounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as amandod) ard ather relevant provisicns af
the Aot (Previous GAAF or Indian GAAR)
The adoption of Ind A3 has been cared out in accardance with Ind AS 101, First-time Adaption of indian Accounting Standards
|n preparing those Ind A% Financial Satements, the Company has sveiod coran exemplions and exceplions in aocordance with ind A5 101, 85 explained below,
The rsulling diffaranse betwaen the cairying values of the assels and labidies in the Financis Stalements as &t the transilion date undes lnd A5 and Previous
GAAF have been racognised cirectly inequily (redained paeings or ansther ppropriate cal=gory of aquily). This note axplains the adustmerts made by the
Comgany in resating its Fravious GAAP Finanwal Sialemants, ineluding tha Bamnce Sheet as at Apnl 01, 2015,
A. Exemptions from retrospectlve application
ind AR 101 alcws firsttime edopters cerlan exemptiens from retrospective appication of cartain wyuiements under ind 45, The Company has slecied to apply the
toliowing aptienal exemptions rom retrospestive applicalion of ind AS:
{a) Long term forelgn currency monetary item
Tre Company has used axemplien under Ind A5 101 for existing leng term foregn currancy mansiany ftem. The Company cunlinues to &pply the policy sdoptad
fur traatmant of exchange dificrences ansing on lang term forsign cunency monatary fems persining ko sogusbon of & depreciable easots for The items
tecogrisnd on or before RMarch 31, 2015
by Amortization of Intangible assele arising from service conceselon arangements
The Company has used exemption under Ind A5 107 and hes cortinue o adopl the aceounting peficy of Previcss GAAR tar amerizelion for inkiniible assats
arising from senvic: ConceEsIcn ATangements ralating fo cecesain 1ol reads inangible assobs moogneed in he Financial Siateme
E. Exceptions from retrospective application
The Company his applied the felewing excepfions furm full retrospeclive applization of Ind AS ae mandatarily required under Ind AS 101
(&) Estimates 1
O ssseesmment of the estimains meade undar tha Previous GAAR financial skalemants, the Campany has conchuded thal theds is no nuke;slty o rovise lhe

ealimetes under lnd AK, 88 there is no objective pvidence That those estimanss werg in emor However, estimates, that were required urbder ind A5 but not
requirad under Previous GAAF, are mada by ihe Company for the relevant reponing dates, reflecting conditions cuisling o= al that date,

(e} Clasalfication and measuroment of financial assets

The classificaticon of financisl Bssols to be measured at amarised cost or fair vaslue through other comprenanalve income is made on the basis af tha facks and
circumstancas that axisted on tha date of transition to Ind AS

€. Transition 1o ind AS - Reconclllations
Imd AS 101 requires an entty to reconcile aquity, cash flovws for the prier periods. The fullowing table represents the reconciliations fram previcus Indian GAAF to
il AE

| EMect of Ind AS adoption on the Balance Sheet as al Mearch 31, 2016 and April 1, 2015

Il Effect of Ind AS adoplion on the Statement of Prefil and Lose for the year ended March 31, 2078

Wl Reconcliation of lolal equity as at March 21, 2018 and Apail 1, 2015

IV Reconcilation of 1otal comprehensive income for the year ended Biarch 21, 2018

W Matedal adjstments to the statement of cash llows for the year erdad March 31, 2018

I. Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Balance Sheet T Miltiors
As &t March 31, 2014
{End of last parked p ted under previ munplri_lm.zms
GALP) {Date of fransition}
|
Ind AS Infl AS

Particulars Motes  Indian GAAF* 2djusirients Ind AS Indian GaAF~ Adjuptmants nd AS
ASSETS |
Mon-current assets

(@) Intangible assets ] B.985.00 4 57084 13,558 B4 = z -

(b} Intargible assets under developmen {il 205823 (232.29) 1,825 84 2171.73 [206.08) B 965,64

(o) Deferred fax assels (net) {1} - 124.79 124.78 e 10313 103.13

[d) Other non - curnent As5els .02 3 a.02 B.23 = B23
Currenl assets

(&) Financial Asseis = -

|i Gaash and cash pquivalems 230.24 . 23028 31.27 - 31 Ay
|4} Crther financitl a3sa 792 - rez o84 By

b} Gurmant Tax Assaols (Met) 1.76 - 1.79 244 - .44

{2} Crher curres assats 14.28 . 14.28 a7 83 - 2.83
Total Assets 11,288.31 4,467,34 15,761.65 4 258 1E {102.93) ~Bi522%
ECUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

{a} Equity share capial 34,00 - .09 34,09 34.0%

1y Cther equity vl 185 B8 340278 3,596.76 aThos ?’,s:a_-..us 2,591.12
LIABILITIES

Men=current llabliites [
{a) Financial Liahilfies |

iy Brrcsings il 10,755 B4 {1.419.37) 6,826,27 7.845.73 (2,361.09) 5457 85
[y Sther finencial Fabilfies il 13028 4 444.0¢ 4,574.42 251.68 | [M2am 205,58
|B} Prowisions [} 2.25 35 BH 3811 1,86 | 1.HE
Current llahilities |
(&) Financs Linbillics |
{i} Tracke payablas dHG 42 - 28552 - | - -
{i] Cthar financial hablities 134,82 - B4 87 PAT.14 - 747 14
(o} Other current liabiities 0.5 . 015 0.52 - 052
{e) Provisions 0.08 * 0.09 0.08 A 0.08B
Total Equity and Liabilities : 1128831 4,463.34 15,761.65 9,255.18 {102.83) 2.25
= A

“The prosentaion requirements under Previsus GAAP differs fram and hence the Previous GAAP Information hes been reqiouped ar case qifétar'-}cnrﬁn‘un‘-;uh"\-\k
ind AS. The regrouped Pravious CAP informalion i& derved based an the auditod financial sltements of the Company. e S
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KM TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Statement of Profit

Particulars

Revenua fram Cperations
Cither Incoma
Total Income

Expensos
Toll Dperabcn and Maintainence expenscs
Consiruction cost
Employoe benefits axpanse
Finance cosls
Arnartization expense
(Mhar expenses
Total expensces

Prafit / {loss) before tax

Tax expensa
Current tax
Defened lax charge{oradit)

Profiti{Loss) for the period {(1X + X1}

Other Comprahansive Income

{i) hams that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasuraments of nel defined
benefil plans ; Gains / (Lass)

(i) Income tax relating to items that will not

be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of nel defined benefit plans

Other Comprehansive Incomes for the year

Total Comprehensive Incoma/ {Loss) for the year

MNotes

(i

[iv)
L}
(iv)
(i)
{vii)

1

Millions

For the year ended March 31, 2016

]

. - Ind AS
¢ Ind AS
Indian GAAP* adjustments n

296,58 1337.08 1,634 58

1.98 0.45 1.7

257.04 1,338.44 1,636.28

2499 54125 78 74

= 131176 1,511.76

B 07 11}47 18 44

234,04 1alre 247 85

&1.05 | e G146

145,82 {102l 78) 44,04

473.92 1,31 8,87 1,792,748
(176.08) 19,57 {156.51}
% i21.76) [21.74)
(176.08) 41.33 [134.75)

0.29 0.29

010 040

o/1g 0.18
(176.08) 41|52 (134.586)

*The presentation requirements under Pravious GAAP differs from and hence the Previcus GAAP Information has been regroupad for
aaze of reconciliation with Ind AS. The regrouped Pravious GAAP information is derived based on the audited financlal statements of

tha Company.

Reconciliation of Total Equity

Particulars

Taotal equity (shareholder's funds as per Indian GAAF)
Adjustments:
Retrpspeciive application of sarvice concessionaine amangements

Premium Ooligation recagnizsed as per concession sgreement
{including unwinding of discoung wn premium defermant)

Amodtisation of intangibla azseis recognised under Ind AS for
Framium defzrmant

Hesurfacing provision recognised s per Ind AS 38 (including
urwinding af discount on resuerfacing provision)

Sub-prdinaled debt in nature of equity

Discounting 1 Hetention money payable
Gorowings

Tax eftecls on adjustmants (defared tax impacl)
Total adjustments

Taotal equity (shareholder's funds as par Ind AS)

T Millions
As at March 31, As at Aptil 01,
2018 2015
193,98 370,08
in {183.08) (144.37)
{vii) 134 26
(i) (3084} .
) (35.86) -
{wi) 3,402 50 2,382.30
(v) (8|12} -
{Hii} (0l75) -
(i 12479 103.13
340278 2,321.06
3,596.76 268112
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KM TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED |
Motes to the Financial Statements

IV. Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Incoma ¥ Millions
Year ended
|
PRTUEUArY — March 31, 2016
Net prafit or loss as per Previous GAAP (Indian GAAF) z {176.08)
Adjustments:
Retrospective application of service concessionaire arrangeamants (i} (38.24)
Premium Obligation recognised as per CoONcession ageeement {wii)
(including ‘unwinding of discoung on pramium deformeént) 134.26
A5 far (i)
Pramium defarmant (30.41)
Resurfacing provision recognised as per ind AS 58
{including (iv) )
unwinding of discount on resurfacing provision) {35,86)
Discounting of Retention maney payable v} (8.14)
Borrowings (iif) i {0.75)
Cithers |
Tax effects on adjustments (deferred lax impact) (i} : 21.68
Total of Adjustment | 41.52
Met profitfloss &s per Ind AS | {134.56)
V. Material adjustments to the Statement of Cash Flows '
| ¢ Millions
Year ended March 31, 2018
Ind AS
Particul Indlan GAAP* Ind AS
‘articulars ndlan adjustimeriis n
Met cash fiows from operating activities 407.61 120688 528.49
Met cash flows from investing activibies (1,748 40) {137.67) {1,886.07)
MNet cash flows from financing activities 1,535.81 16.78 1,556.60
Met increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 198,01 0.00 199,01
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of year 327 (0.00) 3.27

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 230.28 0.00 230.28
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Motes to First time adoption of Ind AS
Note {i) - Application of service concessionaire arrangement as per Appendix A of Ind AS 11

Appendix & of Ind A5 11 'Senaoe ConceEswnaine Arrangement is apphcable o the Company which provides guidance on accourting by the operatars of
public-to-privale Borvicn mnoessicn STangements under which privats sector entiies participate in the development, tinancing, operation end maintenance of
infrestructure for provision of publie services. The Gompany Is engaged in 1 Dosign, Budd, Finance, Cperate and Transler [BEFOT) basis the bol roads

including cperation and maintenance theraot during the concession pariod. Afler the axpiny &f the eoneession parind the Company is required o hanooves fhe
infragtrusture | 8. the toll rosds o the grantor i@, National Highway Autharities of India (NHALL.

A3 par the saliant teatura of the sencesaion armangement, e operaicr has a twaofold achivily bessd on which revanus is recognized in the financat staternants
which i in line with the requirement of Appendn: A of ind A5 11

- 5 consk eclion activity in respect of ita obligation lo desgn, build and finance an asset {hat it rmakes svailable the granter  revenue is rooognized on & stags of
compietion basls [n accordance with Ind AS 11 during the construction phase of Lhe Lol roads

- @7 aperating and maintenance activity in respect of the sssete undar tne concesslan during the operalionsl | revenue is recegrized in emcordance with ind
AR 1R

In return of it aclivibes, te SompEany recaives considersban fram users of 1ol rosds as righl Lo recena 1ol tor ueage of 1ol romds in oonsideraion far the
financing and sanstrustion of the infrastructure fer which an intangible ausels s iecognized in the financial statements, i 5

Relrospactive application of ‘Senvice Concessionaire arangement Fas led to change in ke sccounting policy of the Company A3 o the Laneilon date for
classification, recagniticn and measurament of cenatruction of asseks and mamanance obiigations under the sorvice conoession arangements,

Moreover thers has been decroase in nlangicle assets and decresss in otal equily, sneing on account of apslicaton of service conmssion arrangement, of
T183 &0 millions & al March 31, 2095 and T144.27 milions as sl Apil 1, 2015 and decrease in loss of T3%.24 milions for the year ended March 34, 2018

Ao thorn has besn decrease in intangible asssts arising on sccount of amortizatien of MHAI pramium by T30.94 million=

Mote [ii] - Rerngnition of deferred tax assetsiiability 83 por Ind A5 12

ind A5 12 requires an entity to recognize delenad 1ax using Lalanse sheetl approach; which 18 based on the temparary differences batwesi the lax basm of an
assst ar ability and its carrying amount in the finaneial statements. Delered 1ax is provided in ful for ail temparary differances arising batwasn the tex bases
of Bssefs and liabiities and their carmying emound in the linancial statements, The Company recognizes deferied lux sssete for al deductible temporary
diffesences inchuding unused tax losses caried farward to the sxtent that |t 13 probablo that taxable profits wouwd be available against which the deductibis
temporary differences can be utilized

Under Indian GAAP daferred tex was recognized Sased on incoma approach and defarmed tex aseels in case of unused tax lossos carried lorwand are
recagnized if there |8 virusl carainty that sullizient future tecable income wil be available to realize the same. Hence on secount af above defarred 1ax Basels
wera not recognized under the indian GAAP,

£ secouni of above there has been incroase in detemed tax assed (pet) resulling in increase in Total Equity by T 124,78 milions as at Karch 31, 2016 and T
103 13 milions 86 at April 1, 2016 and decrease in loss of T21.66 millions during the year ended htarch 31, 2016 mainly on accaunt of | d AS adjustments
pertaining to retrospecive application of service sanceesion arrangement and defered tax asset recognized for unused tax lnsses carriod forward as per Ind
A2 |

Note {iii) - Borrowings l

ind AS 108 reguires ransaction costs incurred towards origination of borrowings to be deducted fram the carrying emount of borrowings on initial recoanition
The sama is recognized as interest as part of fhe effactve interest réte methad over the period of the borrowing. T

|indar Indian GAAE, these were capitalized to intangibke assets as par AS 18 ‘Bomowing cost’ as and when incurmed.

O aceount of above thera has been incieasa in barrowings by 20,75 milkons as at March 31, 2018 with 2 corresponding adjustment ta intanglble assats. This
resulted in Increass in loss by 70,75 millions for the year ended March 31, 2016

Naote {iv) - Resunlacing obligalion recogniced as g ad AS 37

As per sorvice concession arangemant, the Cempeny 13 obligated to cany out reswfacing of the roads under the concession penod every five years, The

Company estmates the likely provision required towards resurfacing and sccruss the costs on an stralght line basis over the poricd at e and af which
resurfacing would be required |n the Statemant of Frofit ard Loss

Under Indian CAAR the same chligation was recognized In the year n which resurfacing was requaed as per the CONCBSEIoN arrangement

The rel sHact of the above is decreass in tolal equily by T35 BB miions as at March 31, 2016 with correapanding increase in resurfacing provisions {net of
unwinding digesunt), This resufied in incrsase in loes by %35 86 milipns for the year ended March 21, 2016

Mot [v] - Discounting ot Hetention money

Ind A% 108 requires financial instraments to be messurod st R wilue al inilial recognition in case for financial liakilty net at fair vahup through profit or Joss.
noweves d the 1alr value of the financial fiabiily &l sl racognition (differs from transaction price ie. foir value of fhe consieabon gi i or received than the
entity anal recognize the instiunents at its fair value. |r the present case the Company s discounled 1@ retantion money piyabltﬁur{u'r to refksct the fair
value of the resleslion money at initial recognition, After inftial messurcmenl subsegquently the Diabilitias would be recognized at amartls o5k

Uindes Indian GAAR retention meney was recognized at hisionesl coet and no discounting was required to be done.

The disseunting has beon rocognised as & finance cost The et efect of the above is decrease in olal equily by $8.14 milkans as at March. 31, 2018 with A
comespanding edjustment 1o retention monay. This resuled in increzse in loas by T8.14 millions for the year anded March 31, 2076,

Mote {vi)- Classification of subordinate debt Instruments {in nalure of equily]
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ind AS 32 requires classification of financial insirumenls esued into financial llabfities or squiy, Subardinate debt insiruments isswed o nol meet the defintion
of s Binancial iabilty, as the terms do not cast 4 contractual abligation on the the Company to make any payment aof principal and accrued interest (hereon in
cash ar oler financial assel. Furtrer, since the instruments are non-canvertitte, the Company |s not required 1o setle he contracts by issuance of thuzir o
equity instrumeants.

Under Indign GAAP, theso instrumeants ware reporied as bormowings

On acoount of above thers has bean increase in iotal equity by T 3403 .50 milllons ps al March 31, 2015 and T 226230 millions as a1 Aprik 1, 2015 with &
corresponding Secraaze in borrowings

Mete [vil) - Premium obligation recognized upfront s par service concessionaire armangmmoent

As par the serica nonrassion aramgurenl The Company |3 abligatad in pay an Al lised amaurt af pramiim ta Katlsnal Highany Aufhoities of India (HIA. Tha Premium
Qoligatan has heen raatad s inlargible aeset and nas been capitalisnd uplo urdar Ind A3 a8 on the tranlition e wih @ rawrcsparing impact ta liability recognizad
walrar far prestim pEyERla o Natiorat Higheay scthorities of Ind (NHAL cuon Lhe concesston pericd a2 1he same 13 paid bawnrds right o waen reyane by cenatnnting and
Learating the reads during thn roncuession garod

Wrkdar Endian SaAP the aame wies oepansod o 1 slatemart of prafit and nsm s and wihen L wab incumed,

On mannunt ol abive Thars has boan Inereasa in mhainst eaning by 134,26 miliens and decraasa in heanciat lability by 3 124 25 as at Warch 21, 2018 on anoount &f premium
payania e KHAL e lhe ransdion dats
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KM TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 34 - Assets pledged as security

I'he camying amounts of essets plocped as security for curent and non-current Dorowings ars: T Millions
March 31, 2017 Warch 31, 2016 April 1, 2016
Current
Financial assets
First charge
Cash and cash equivelents 10 BB 23028 a1.av
Cither Financlal Asscsta TBA2 .02 B EB
Mon-financial assots
First charge
Ofher Current Asasts 2.7 14 206 32 B3
Total current assets pledged as securily 108.01 252,48 T2.T7E
Non-gurrent
Firgt cherge
Intengible dsse 1331763 13,556,564
Interqibis Assel Under Dsvslopment 2233 06 1.82594 B GRA BB
Cither non cumient assete 0.03 0.0z .23
Total non-current assels pledged as security 16,551.64 15,362.59 B,873.80
Totel assots pledged as security 15,660.63 8044 88

15,635.07
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KM TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes Lo tha Financial Statemeants

Wote 35 - Taxation
Note 35 (a) - Income Tax Expenses

The balance comprises temporary differences allributabile to

Particulars

(a) Income tax axpenso

ezt i

Ciurienl, e o6 profits for the year
Acdjusimiante for currant tax of prior pericds
Total current tax expanse

Delprre o

Necreaseiinoreass) in daferred tax a5l
(Becreasalincrease in dafarred tax laolites
Tolal deforred tax exponsedbenofit)

Income tax expoense

Mote 36 (0) Reconcillation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate:

Particulars

Profit &8s pesr Ind AS from confinuing oparations bafora income 1ax exoense

Profif fram disconfinuing operation before income lax expense

income Tax as per effective Tax Rate of 34 B0E%

BEC-37 amount af @any liatbity of a8 contingent nature -provision of Graluity & lsave anchasemant

Any other exempl income-Mulual Fund Dividend-
SEC-37-Amount of any liabilily of a centingent nature-Provision
Dther temparary differences

MNaote 25{c) - Deferred tax {liability] / Asset

The balance comprises temparary differences attributable to

Particulars

Unused tax losses camed forward

Infangitia assate
Toll collectian rights
remium deferameant

Intangible asseis under development
MM Fromium payanhs
Other itams

Derivatives

B owanips

Retardion Mooy Payzbk
fetirement benefit chligation

Met deferred tax (liabilily)/easst

March 31, 2017

T Asat As at
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2018
ba Q.20
145 0.00
13,35 0.00
[343 BE] {1.670.27}
Ll 1. B8
77 23] (21.68)
[264.88} {4 BE)
Ag at Asg at

March 31, 2046

(780.62) {158.51)
{z'mlns:n (54.18)
[
b1 014
(0,31 (345]
} 118
547 a1.36
1264.88) {21.86}
L] I'-".'il_:'i[:uns
~  Asat “Asat
March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
101.56
(B30} -
(1,580 83}
14128 123,60
1,543 85 -
|
15,04) {B.TE)
&'A6 {14 57)
0 as o BY
12479 103.13
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KM TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes to the Financial Statements

Nobe 36 Capital Commitments and other commitments

¥ Millions

As at As at A.q' at

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
. Estimated value of capilal contract remaining
to be executed for construction of toll roeds 384.99 G42.24 1889 53
T aB49E B4z 24 1,808 53
Mata 37 Contingent liabilitics
Ag at

Sl Wo.

Particulars

March 31, 2017

Liffersnces in balances as per bank loan confiimations and baoks of acecunts mainly on account of
1 interzst rele reselling are under recanclllation with the benkers. The Company expect 1o satile thasa
ianrm and do not anticlpate any luither liability on aceaunt of Interest.

11.60

Note 28

parind. Accordingly, Intangible Assets have been amorised prespacively as per the revised estimated toll revenue

Curing the period the company had appointed a toll consullant and have re-astimated tha toll revanue over the remaining U’JI'IC-EE.SiDI\

Note 39 — Damanetisation

Coneequent upan the de-monetisation of currency noles by the Central Govemment, toll collection had been suspended from
Movember 8, 2016 to December 2, 2016 for which the SPY Group has raised claims on NHAI for reimburserment of the expenses
incurred during this perdod as per the provisions of the Concession Agreament entered into between 1he company and M 1Al read
along with NHA| circular dated November 28, 2016 and Dacember &, 2016 in this regard. Amount of 25482 millions claimed. being
contractually enfarceable and cerlain of recovery has been recognised as other operating income. As at March 31, 2017, ¥54.82
millians was receivable and disclosed under Other Financials Assets = Curent.

|
Note 40 = Toll Operation and Maintenance Expenses (Refer Note 18) for the year ended March 31, 2017 includes the

followlng:

Pursuant 1o the MHAI Circular dated Movember 15, 2018, wherzin NHAL prescribed that micre surfacing may be used for thq'} renewsal
course, maintanance and repair on national highways for al least 25% toe 30% of the total length. Based on the said circular the
Company have estimated the provisian for Resurfacing expenzes in the beoks of accounts.

Hote 41 - Statement of cash received and depesited during demonitisation period ¥ Millicns
Specitied bank  |Other denamination Total

Particulars notes notas
Clasing cash in hand 2% on D&,11.2016 257 08B DEE
(*) Pemmitted recoips T3 2T B8R 27,906
i) Perntled payments g P 3
{1 Amouk sepaaitad In bank 26.20 24 10 24,10 |
Clusing cash in hand as on 30122016 476 476

Mote 42 — Events after roporting period

There arz na subsequent event atler the reporting period which required adjustments to the Financial
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KM TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes to the Financial Statements

Note 43 - Previous year figures have been regrouped and re-arranged wherever necessary
to make them comparable to those for current year

For MKPS & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountanis
Firm's Ragn. Mo, 302014E

« i

\ffabndrs Khanda—" Kaushik Pal
Partner Directar
Membership MNa. - 065025 DIN:05237230
Date: April 14, 2017 Date; April 14, 2017

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
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